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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 
  
 
COMMISSIONERS:  Edith Ramirez, Chairwoman 
    Julie Brill 
    Maureen ,      ) 

a limited liability company,      )  
         ) 
         )    
______________________________________________________) 
 

 

COMPLAINT 
 
 Pursuant to the Clayton Act and the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act”), and by 
virtue of the authority vested in it by said Acts, the Federal Trade Commission (“Commission”), 
having reason to believe that AB Acquisition, LLC, a limited liability company, subject to the 
jurisdiction of the Commission, entered into a merger agreement with United Supermarkets, 
L.L.C. (“United”), a limited liability company, subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission, in 
violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 18, and Section 5 of the FTC 
Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45, and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding in 
respect thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its Complaint, stating its charges as 
follows:  
 

I. RESPONDENT 
 

1. Respondent AB Acquisition, LLC is a limited liability company organized, existing, and 
doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its corporate 
headquarters and principal place of business located at 250 Parkcenter Boulevard, Boise, Idaho.  
 
2. Respondent, through its wholly owned indirect subsidiary, Albertson’s LLC 
(“Albertson’s”), 
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sugar, flour, sauces, spices, coffee, tea and other staples; other grocery products, including 
nonfood items such as soaps, detergents, paper goods, other household products, and health and 
beauty aids; pharmaceutical products and pharmacy services (where provided); and, to the extent 
permitted by law, wine, beer and/or distilled spirits. 
 
11. Supermarkets provide a distinct set of products and services and offer consumers 
convenient one-stop shopping for food and grocery products.  Supermarkets typically carry more 
than 10,000 different items, typically referred to as stock-keeping units or SKUs, as well as a 
deep inventory of those items.  In order to accommodate the large number of food and non-food 
products necessary for one-stop shopping, supermarkets are large stores that typically have at 
least 10,000 square feet of selling space.   
 
12. Supermarkets compete primarily with other supermarkets that provide one-stop shopping 
opportunities for food and grocery products.  Supermarkets base their food and grocery prices 
primarily on the prices of food and grocery products sold at other nearby competing 
supermarkets.  Supermarkets do not regularly conduct price checks of food and grocery products 
sold at other types of stores and do not typically set or change their food and grocery prices in 
response to prices at other types of stores. 
 
13.      Although retail stores other than supermarkets also sell food and grocery products—
including convenience stores, specialty food stores, limited assortment stores, hard-discounters, 
and club stores—these types of stores do not, individually or collectively, provide sufficient 
competition to effectively constrain prices at supermarkets.  These retail stores do not offer a 
supermarket’s distinct set of products and services that provide consumers with the convenience 
of one-stop shopping for food and grocery products.  The vast majority of consumers shopping 
for food and grocery products at supermarkets are not likely to start shopping elsewhere, or 
significantly increase grocery purchases elsewhere, in response to a small but significant price 
increase by supermarkets.  
 

VI.    THE RELEVANT GEOGRAPHIC MARKET 
 

14. Customers shopping at supermarkets are motivated by convenience and, as a result, 
competition for supermarkets is local in nature.  Generally, the overwhelming majority of 
consumers’ grocery shopping occurs at stores located very close to where they live.   
 
15. Respondent and United operate supermarkets under the Albertsons, United Supermarkets, 
and Market Street banners within approximately two to five miles of each other in both the 
western half of Amarillo, Texas and the southwest  
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the area within the city limits that runs south of U.S. Route 277 and west of U.S. Route 281 
(“Southwest Wichita Falls”).  A hypothetical monopolist controlling all supermarkets in these 
areas could profitably raise prices by a small but significant amount. 

 
 

VII.    MARKET CONCENTRATION 
 

17. The relevant markets of West Amarillo and Southwest Wichita Falls, Texas already are 
highly concentrated, and the Proposed Merger will substantially increase concentration, whether 
measured by the Herfindahl Hirschman Index (“HHI”) or by the number of competitively 
significant firms remaining in the markets post-acquisition.   
 
18. In West Amarillo, the post-merger HHI in the relevant geographic market would increase 
503 points from 4501 to 5004, when measured by revenues.  This market concentration level 
gives rise to a presumption that the Proposed Merger is unlawful in the West Amarillo 
geographic market. 
 
19. In Southwest Wichita Falls, the post-merger HHI in the relevant geographic market 
would increase 811 points from 4193 to 5004.  This market concentration level, once again, 
gives rise to a presumption that the acquisition is unlawful in the Southwest Wichita Falls 
geographic market. 
 
20. The Proposed Merger reduces the number of supermarket competitors in the relevant 
geographic markets from three to two in both West Amarillo and Southwest Wichita Falls. 
 

VIII.    ENTRY CONDITIONS 
       
21. Entry into the relevant markets would not be timely, likely, or sufficient in magnitude to 
prevent or deter the likely anticompetitive effects of the Proposed Merger.  Significant entry 
barriers include the time and costs associated with conducting necessary market research, 
selecting an appropriate location for a supermarket, obtaining necessary permits and approvals, 
constructing a new supermarket or converting an existing structure to a supermarket, and 
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23. The ultimate effect of the Proposed Merger would be to increase the likelihood that the 
prices of food, groceries, or services will increase, and that the quality and selection of food, 
groceries, or services will decrease, in the relevant sections of the country.   
 

X.    VIOLATIONS CHARGED 
 

24. The agreement described in Paragraph 7 constitutes a violation of Section 5 of the FTC 
Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45, and the acquisition, if consummated, would violate Section 7 
of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 18, and Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15 
U.S.C. § 45. 
 
 
 WHEREFORE, THE PREMISES CONSIDERED, Federal Trade Commission on this 
twenty-third day of December 2013, issues its complaint against said Respondent.   
  
 By the Commission. 
 
 
 
      April J. Tabor   
      Acting Secretary 
 
SEAL 
 
 
 


